CRDA

3:00pm — 3:05pm

3:05pm —3:15pm

3:15pm — 3:20pm

3:20pm —3:30pm

3:30pm — 3:45pm

3:45pm — 3:50pm

3:50pm — 4:00pm

4:00pm

Capital Region
Development Authority

Agenda
CRDA Board Meeting
Thursday, November 19, 2020
#%%3:00pm***
Go-To-Meeting

Call to Order & Minutes
- Draft Minutes October 15, 2020 *

Mayors Reports

Finance Report
- Monthly Financial update

Venue Update
- XL Center
o Hearing ordered for XL Plan *
- Rentschler
- Connecticut Convention Center
o COVID-related operations
- Dillon Stadium

Housing & Neighborhood Committee

- 103-21 Allyn Street (aka 88 Allyn Partnership) *
- 100 Trumbull street *

- Pratt Street I — 55-75 Pratt Street *

1279-83 Main street

o Conversion date amendment *

o Budget Amendment *
Projects

Regional & Economic Development Committee

Executive Director

- Front St District - HB Nitkin Pilot Deferral *

- Bushnell South Development area - RFP

- Regional Market — Development RFP

- Contract Standard Review Board Draft Report
- Construction update

Adjourn

* Vote item




DRAFT
Board Meeting Minutes
October 15, 2020




Capital Region Development Authority
100 Columbus Boulevard
5% Floor
Hartford, CT 06103
Thursday, October 15, 2020
3:00 pm — GoToMeeting
(The Board Meeting was held via GoToMeeting with public access)

Board Members Present: Chairwoman Suzanne Hopgood; Andy Bessette; Mayor Luke Bronin; David
Jorgensen; Alexandra Daum; David Robinson; Robert Patricelli; Joanne Berger Sweeney

Board Members Absent; Seila Mosquera-Bruno; Mayor Marma Leclerc; Melissa McCaw; Joseph
Giulietti SRR

CRDA Staff Present: Michael Freimuth; Joseph Geremia; Km | rt; Robert Saint; Terryl Mitchell

Smith; Anthony Lazzaro; Jennifer Gaffey

Minutes

The minutes of the September 17, 2020 CRDA Boald Meetmg were moved by Andy Bessette, seconded
by Joanne Berger-Sweeney and approved. S , )

Mavor Report

the cities, mcludmg colIege students that moved home Wlth parents. Thele may be a way to market to
that group of people that may not Want to return to New York or Boston

role that it plays He cxpressed that 1t 18 str: ateglc land and ‘he would like to see the 1eg10na1 market draw
more footiraffic and activate an area that is more pedestrian. He would like to see it live up to its full
potential. e

Albany and Woodland the Clty is wmkmg haid to try to make something happen at Albany and
Woodland. : 4

DoNo — official groundbreéking.Was',ﬁeld today, October 15 at 2pm.
Tax Deed sale — The City has a tax deed sale coming up.

Finance

CRDA CFO Joseph Geremia reported the following financial update for October 2020.

Fiscal Year 2021 Operating Statistics

CT Convention Center — Aug. 2020
Stats: no events scheduled until Jul. 2021 due to state COVID-19 restrictions
Aug, financials: Net Loss of $1.061M favorable to budget by $72,200 due to COVID-19 shutdown
Total year projection of $6.432M loss unfavorable to budget by $2.424M

| ©,




CRDA advance of $750,000

CRDA Parking Facilities — Aug./Sept. 2020

Stats: Utilization of 43% unfavorable to budget by 16%
Monthly rate customers unfavorable to budget by 1,800 at 5,900 YTD
Transient customers unfavorable to budget by 27,100 at 11,900 YTD

Aug. financials: Revenue unfavorable to budget by $321,200 due to facility limited openings thru
Jul. 2021
Expenses $206,000 favorable compared to budget due to savings in utilities,
security, vehicle ID tag purchases, credit card fees, and repairs & maintenance
Net Income $115,200 unfavorable to budget
Total year projection $700,000 unfavorable:t_o‘i ;budget

Church Street Garage — Aug./Sept. 2020

Stats: Utilization of 58% unfavorable to budget by 14%
Monthly rate customers unfavorable to budget by 600 at 2,700 YTD
Transient customers unfavorable to'budget by 2, 500 at 1,500 YTD

Aug. financials: Revenue unfavorable to budget by $51,200 :
Expenses $102,000 favor able;f' 'ompaled to budget due to savmgs in utilities and
security % R
Net Income $51,000 favorable to budget
Total year proj eot10" $264 000 unfavmable to budget

XL Center — Aug. 2020 SRR :
Stats: no events scheduled until Sépt : 2*021 due to 'S'fg’_t@ COVID-19 restrictions

Aug. financials: ~ Operating expenses $246, 800 f‘lvmable to budget due to savings in personnel and
1epa1ls & mamtenancc ‘ :

Total yem proj ectlon of $4. 444M loss unfavorable to budget by $447, 800

Cash Flow:.i ‘Payables aged at 90 to 150 days (‘52 9881\/1) 81% over 120 days

Cash ﬂow Oct 2020 th] u Feb 2021 — payroll and limited payables

P&W Stadium at Rentschle1 Field Aug 2020
Stats: “ Toronto FC schedu[ed for 6 games through Nov. 2020
“UConn footba]l season cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions
Aug. financials: Operating expenses $97,700 favorable compared to budget due to savings in
personnel and repairs & maintenance
Net Loss-of $311,100 favorable to budget by $95,800 due to COVID-19 shutdown
Total year projection of $993,300 loss unfavorable to budget by.$41,200

Cash Flow: Payables aged at 90 to 120 days ($884,000), 47% over 120 days
Cash flow: limited payables and no payroll

Payables: XL for payroll: $320,000, Spectra Corp.: $240,000, State police: $90,000

CT Regional Market
Stats: 82 warehouse units and restaurant — Occupancy: 78% with 13 tenants
Activity: Farmers’ Market opened for 2020 season on May 2 operating through Oct. 2020

Aug. financials:  Operating revenue of $118,000 slightly favorable to budget




Operating expenses of $135,100 slightly unfavorable to budget due to security
services and farmers’ market labor
Net loss of $17,100 unfavorable to budget by $4,900

Dillon Stadium — Calendar Year — Aug. 2020
Calendar year revised operating expense budget of $250,000
Aug. financials: Operating expenses of $148,500 (60% actual vs. 67% of revised annual budget)
Capital reserve balance: $261,000

Andy Bessette inquired about Dillon Stadium expenses. Mr. Geremia explained that although the season
is over, their budget is based on the entire calendar year and there remain expenses for the year. Dillon
has only used 60% of their budget so they should fall within their restructured budget of $250,000 for
the year. Mr. Bessette asked if the playoff game helped CRDA financially. CRDA does not take in any
revenue based on how many games they play. Mr. Geremia explém'ed that CRDA is responsible for the
field, making sure the Stadium is up and running for thoso games as well as coordinating the community
events. - R

Suzanne Hopgood asked if community events we1e'orilliold Kim Hart IESpt')nded that the City of
Hartford has closed all of their fields to community and private events. The-only events that will take
place at Dillon are managed activities, such as school; gloups as opposed to commumty events.

Venue Update

Andy Besse‘rte defen ed to Mlchael Flelmuth to update the Boald 1ega1d1ng the cost reductions for the

Rentschler Field - Rentschle1 F1eld wﬂl be closed after the :T010nt0 games until late Spring. There are
restrictions regarding how many fans will be allowed i in the building; for the games, based on both MLS
and State COVID 1est110t1ons pe1haps a capa01ty of 5 OOO people.

.x..

quieted do n: untll next fall

Dillon — Dillon Stadlum Wrapped up aftel the USL playoff Subject to COVID restrictions, the stadium
will reopen in the Spring for the ne‘{t season. Managed activities such as school groups are the only
events that may take place :

XL —Due to the unlmown of COVID 1est110t10ns CRDA and UCONN have agreed that games will not
take place at XL, this year, = .

There have been unconfirmed reports that the AHL season may start in January or February, versus the

normal season starting in October. What is not currently known is how the league will open their season,

i.e. complete league or broken into divisions, fanless or fans, etc.

The CRDA has communicated with MSG explaining that if it is going to be a practice league and no
fans, then MSG will have to help with building expenses because it cannot be run under the current
agreements.

Bob Saints team is preparing construction packages to be bid on late 2020, early 2021 for activity in late
February, early March. A cost estimator has been retained and design teams are running through
multiple variations. The construction manager RFP to oversee multiple tasks is underway. A

| €



construction calendar has been set up on the assumption the building will be shut down. The
construction will be in the public areas while the building is quiet and if projects go into the latter part of
the year and the building opens, the construction will move to back of house so events will not be
disrupted. It is unclear how much can be done as it will be a function of the Bond Commission and
whether more funds can be authorized. Plans, studys, appraisals and title work are all in the process of
being updated.

Last month Bob Patricelli asked if staff would put together a calendar of different scenarios for XL.
Staff is working on that and will put it before the Venue Committee to vet some ideas.

Bob Patricelli asked if Mr. Freimuth could put some numbers together regarding the gap between Bond
Commission funds and how much more is likely to be needed. Mr. Freimuth responded that the $100M
lower bowl strategy is the best scenario, which would make the lower bowl a premium bowl, allowing
pressure to be taken off the concourse. The $100M should buy what the plan entails however there are
two new elements that were not in the original budget that need 10 be considered. One is security
demands today are far different than when the analysis was: started i:e. what has happened in soccer
stadiums in Europe and concerts in Las Vegas. It will require ‘people being screened inside the building
and staff being trained with equipment made to accommodate security” and sc1een1r1g The second is

COVID, which will require further health smeenmg

Andy Bessette wondered if he should call Goveln(n Lamont and €xplain that the CRDA Board fully
supports the $65M Bond Commission submlsslon and it would be appreciated if he passed it so the
work can proceed at the XL, Center. : '

David Robinson asked what the timing is ar ound the constr uction. Mt Fl cimuth responded that the work
has been planned around a two year constructlon wmeW

David Jorgensen asked where CRDA stands Wlth Northland because it w1ll affect the work being done
while the building is shut down Mr. F1 e1muth lesponded that Northland has not yet been reapproached.

Housing & Nelghborhood Commltte

constr uctlon and have been affected by COVID M. Freimuth presented the i"ollowmg project as one of
the affected pr OJects

88 Allyn Partner siwp (aka ] 03-21 Allyn)

Background: Located in the f01me1 enteltamment zone', the three-building complex known as 103-21
Allyn was acquired by Paul Khakshouu (owner of abutting Bond building) from the Lewtan Family
estate. The $21.1M project was ‘funded by CRDA ($6.6M), Peoples Bank (initially with United Bank)
and federal and state historic credits. The property has been completed and has now begun leasing its 66
units (and 3750 sf retail) but was delivered six months late due to a variety of construction delays, in
part caused by COVID (three week shut down, material delays, smaller work crews), a sudden late
summer storm/flash flood (that damaged the basement requiring rebuilding and c/o delays), and a
variety of historic preservation amendments necessitated by problems/conditions discovered during
demolition and reconstruction that incurred considerable time for approval. As the building enters the
rent up period, it is contending with a slower market due to COVID but has rented its first four units
with other applications in review.

4 ( d; )




Proposal: The developer has asked for a three month deferral in interest payments to compliment a like

deferral from Peoples Bank. Such deferral will ease cash flow during the lease up/operations period over

the next fiscal quarter. The value of the deferral in interest is $49,500.
The CRDA Housing and Neighborhood Committee approved this deferral at its October 2, 2020
meeting.

The following motion was moved by Andy Bessette, seconded by Joanne Berger-Sweeney and
approved.

“The CRDA Board of Directors approves the deferral of interest on the CRDA morigage to 88 Allyn
Partnership LLC for the property at 103-21 Allyn for a period of three months beginning Oct 1, 2020.
Such interest deferral being valued at 349,500, with such value bemg added fo the outstanding
principle.” ;

Regional & Economic Development Committee

Chairwoman Hopgood inquired about and activity on the:Regional & Eje011omic Development
Committee. Mr. Freimuth indicated that the Committee has not met in quite some time.

The following projects would come under this commiti‘,ee'

Regional Market — The Governor has asked for a plan f01 the Regmnal Market at 101 Reserve Road.
Founders Plaza — Redevelopment of Foundels Plaza housmg development and parking.

Silver Lane — The old theater site. i : :

Goodwm College — as the mflasuuel,me WOI]( is done they will be able to pursue a couple of projects

Executive Dir cctor Repm t

rd

Bushnell Sourh Plannmg Py OJecf \

Michael Fr elmuth and Bob Patricelll explamed that CRDA has been asked to advance the Bushnell
south area. The next step is how the. pIO_]GCt moves forward with Spinnaker and 55 Elm Street as well as
other surrounding properties. The Bushnell South Garage should be completed in Spring 2021 and the
following was presented and discussed regarding the next planning phase.

Whereas the City of Hartford, the Spinnaker Development Group, the Bushnell Theatre and the CRDA
have had discussions for the redeévelopment of land and buildings within the Bushnell South planning
area, defined as that area between Buckingham Street, Bushnell Park/Elm Street, Trinity Street and
Hudson Street in Hartford;

Whereas the entities wish to advance the planning effort and incorporate market data, infrastructure
demands and neighborhood issues and state office operations into the overall program;

Whereas CRDA owns land, has developed a garage and is likely to acquire additional parcels/buildings
within the are in the near term;

Whereas it is expected that CRDA will be a source of financing for the overall development;

o

/65
('




Whereas it is appropriate for CRDA to participate in the funding of such a study in partnership with
other entities engaged in the area;

The following motion was moved by Andy Bessette, seconded by Bob Patricelli and approved.

“Now therefore be it resolved, that the executive director is authorized to participate in such study and
subject to funds being available, to contribute up to 350,000 towards the overall planning exercise.”

Other Items Discussed

Kim Hart explained that the Hartford Minority Construction Council held their annual networking event
and recognized CRDA as one of forty organization as partners 1n then efforts.

Mr. Freimuth reported that CRDA was recognized by Natlonal LISC as a Champion Public Partner for
Neighborhood Development. . ;'_j;- :

6: OOpm and be held at the CRDA office. Mlchael Freimuth asl{ed _that both times be held. The list of
meeting dates for the upcoming year will be sent Vla emaﬂ B

Adjourned 3:51pm




Finance Report




100 Columbus Boulevard

CRDA Suite 500
. . Hartford, CT 06103-2819
Capital Region Tel (860) 527-0100

Development Authority Fax (860) 527-0133
www.crdact.net

Financial Update — November 2020

Fiscal Year 2021 Operating Statistics

CT Convention Center — Sept. 2020
Stats: no events scheduled until Jul. 2021 due to state COVID-19 restrictions
Sept. financials: Net Loss of $1.474M favorable to budget by $283,600 due to COVID-19 shutdown
Total year projection of $6.432M loss unfavorable to budget by $2.424M
CRDA advance of $750,000

CRDA Parking Facilities — Sept./Oct. 2020

Oct. stats: Utilization of 43% unfavorable to budget by 16%
Monthly rate customers unfavorable to budget by 2,400 at 7,800 YTD
Transient customers unfavorable to budget by 37,800 at 14,200 YTD

Sept. financials: Revenue unfavorable to budget by $489,500 due to facility limited openings thru Jul. 21
Expenses $236,700 favorable compared to budget due to savings in utilities, security,
vehicle ID tag purchases, credit card fees, and repairs & maintenance
Net Income $252,800 unfavorable to budget
Total year projection of $2.201M net income unfavorable to budget by $1.161M

Church Street Garage — Sept./Oct. 2020
Oct. stats: Utilization of 57% unfavorable to budget by 15%
Monthly rate customers unfavorable to budget by 900 at 3,600 YTD
Transient customers unfavorable to budget by 2,900 at 2,500 YTD
Sept. financials: Revenue unfavorable to budget by $155,500
Expenses $77,400 favorable compared to budget due to savings in utilities and security
Net Income $78,100 unfavorable to budget
Total year projection even with budget of $62,000 net income

XL Center — Sept. 2020
Stats: no events scheduled until Sept. 2021 due to state COVID-19 restrictions
Tentative AHL season in Feh. 2021
Sept. financials: Operating expenses $413,600 favorable to budget due to savings in personnel and
repairs & maintenance
Net Loss of $1,225,500 favorable to budget by $480,900 due to COVID-19 shutdown
Total year projection of $6.245M loss unfavorable to budget by $448,500

Cash Flow: Payables aged at 90 to 150 days ($3.257M), 74% over 120 days
Payables: City: $2.194M, Spectra Corp.: $330,000
CRDA advance of $750,000
Cash flow: Nov. 2020 thru Feb. 2021 — payroll and limited payables




P&W Stadium at Rentschler Field — Sept. 2020
Stats: Toronto FC scheduled for 6 games through Nov. 2020
UConn football season cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions
Sept. financials: Operating expenses $156,900 favorable compared to budget due to savings in personnel
and repairs & maintenance
Net Loss of $405,800 unfavorable to budget by $51,400 due to COVID-19 shutdown
Total year projection of $993,300 loss unfavorable to budget by $41,200

Cash Flow: Payables aged at 90 to 120 days ($1,084,400), 38% over 120 days
Cash flow: limited payables and no payroll
Payables: XL for payroll: $319,000, Spectra Corp.: $240,000, State police: $90,000

CT Regional Market
Stats: 82 warehouse units and restaurant — Occupancy: 88% with 16 tenants
Activity: Farmers’ Market opened for 2020 season on May 2 operating through Nov. 2020

Sept. financials: Operating revenue of $230,300 favorable to budget by $28,200
Operating expenses of $179,600 favorable to budget by $8,800 due to savings in building
maintenance and utilities offset with increases in security and farmers’ market labor
Net income of $50,700 favorable to budget by $37,000

Dillon Stadium — Calendar Year — Sept. 2020
Calendar year revised operating expense budget of $250,000
Sept. financials: Operating expenses of $169,600 (67% actual vs. 75% of revised annual budget)
Capital reserve balance: $261,000




Venue Committee

.

(%




MOTION

“The CRDA Board requests and hereby approves that the CRDA Venue Committee schedule a
public hearing (virtual) on Tuesday, January 5, 2021, 4:00pm, for the purpose of presenting
the updated and revised redevelopment plan for the XL Center, including an opportunity for
public comment.




Housing
&
Neighborhood

Committee




103-21 Allyn Street (aka 88 Allyn Partnership)

Whereas 103-21 Allyn, a historic renovation encompassing a three building configuration creating 66
units of housing along with street level retail is eligible for historic credit bonus if it were to dedicate
20% of the units as affordable;

Whereas a review of the rents and operating pro forma show that the property’s ability to service its
expenses and debt would not be adversely impacted by a restriction on rents for the affordable units;

Whereas the project would be able to secure additional funds from the credits to meet construction
delays and overruns created in part by the Covid pandemic but also by standards required by the
historic renovation program;

Whereas the CRDA loan agreements restricted the property to a market rate units;

Now therefore be it resolved that the Executive Director is authorized to enter into agreements allowing
for a bonus increase in historic credits to 103-21 Allyn St (aka 88 Allyn Partnership) requiring a 20%
affordable housing unit mix.

100 Trumbull Street

Whereas 100 Trumbull Street is owned by the same investment group that developed 101 and 111 Pearl
Street, both of which are changing ownership in order to raise capital for the completion and lease
up/stabilization of 101/111 Pearl;

Whereas CRDA lent to 100 Trumbull Street in order to convert 8 units into 16 one bedroom and
efficiency units, nearly half of which have been or will be completed by December 2021;

Whereas the remaining funds have not be expended but the new ownership group wishes to continue
the program and has asked for an extension of the completion date;

Whereas such extension does not harm the operating pro forma;

Now therefore be it resolved that the Executive Director is authorized to extend the completion date for
the full conversion of the first 8 units to December 2021 and the second 8 units to December 2022 and
amend the subsequent repayment commencement dates to January 2022 for the first tranche of units
and January 2023 for the second tranche of units. '




Pratt Street 1 — 55-75 Pratt Street

Whereas CRDA has approved acquisition and construction loan funding for the Pratt Street Initiative
phase 1 at 99 Pratt Street and 196 Trumbull Street for the conversion of those vacant properties into
129 apartment units;

Whereas the Project eventually will include the conversion of the adjoining properties known as 55-75
Pratt Street for additional retail and residential space;

Whereas the executive director may request that the phase 1 funding also be secured by a mortgage on
55-75 Pratt Street in order to provide additional collateral for the CRDA phase 1 financing;

Now therefore be it resolved that should the executive director determine it is appropriate to obtain
additional collateral to further secure CRDA funding phase 1 of the Project, that the executive director be
dully authorized to require that the property at 55-75 Pratt Street be secured as collateral for said CRDA
loan.

1279-83 Main Street (conversion date extension)

Whereas CRDA has partnered with the Hartford Community Loan Fund (HCLF) and the San Juan Center
to renovate 1279-83 Main Street (Project) into 10 units and two storefronts;

Whereas the Project has incurred construction delays and costs overruns, was redesigned and secured
new general contractor and its funding was increased by HCLF and by CRDA (2017);

Whereas the Project has now made considerable progress and is nearing completion;

Whereas the Projects initial conversion date was to be May 2021 for full mortgage servicing but now
needs to be adjusted to May 2022 in order to allow for lease up and stabilization in 2021;

Whereas HCLF and SIC have requested that CRDA amend its conversion date to be consistent with HCLF
mortgage:

Now therefore be it resolved that the CRDA Board approves the adjustment of the mortgage conversion
date to May 2022; as approved by the CRDA Housing and Neighborhood Committee at its November 6,
2020 meeting;

Alternate Resolution for housing items:

The CRDA Board approves the actions of the Housing and Neighborhood Committee of November 6,
2020 approving term modifications as expressed in the resolutions above to the following projects:
103-21 Allyn, 100 Trumbull St, Pratt Street Phase 1, and 1279-83 (conversion date extension).




1279-83 Main Street (Budget Amendment)

Whereas the 1279-83 Main Street Project must adjust underground electrical cables traversing Main
Street in order to upgrade its electrical service which had not been budgeted or planned and presents a
cost increase of $60,000, of which the developer will contribute $20,000 with additional funds being
redirected from the balance within the Project contingency account, and the developer has asked for an
increase of $32,000 from CRDA;

Whereas the increase in units from 8 to 10 as well as storefront rent will increase the Project’s revenue
in order to service the additional debt; '

Whereas CRDA has a special development account of $4 million established to renovate mixed use
properties including retail components on the ‘Arrowhead Block’ within the DoNo Redevelopment Area
and 1279-83 Main Street is such a property;

Whereas the Arrowhead Funds can also be used in lieu of CRDA Capital Reserve Funds previously
allocated to this Project;

Now therefore be it resolved that the CRDA Board approves an increase in its original loan to the 1279-
83 Main Street Project to 5297,000 to accommodate the increased electrical cost and associated fees at
the same terms and conditions as the initial note and that such funds totaling 532,000 shall be allocated
from the Arrowhead Block fund previously approved by the Board and the State Bond Commission; and
that CRDA staff re-allocate funds from the Arrowhead Block accounts to supplant those CRDA Capital
Reserve funds totaling $140,000 previously utilized for the 1279-83 Main St project




UGSS{WLIO) puog DiA 3AJasal YOOZS .
pund (pydpd Buisnop Wwoif NOrTs 5
sjoap dpaay g 35 340l /M BOTZ ¢
pung do) BuisnoH wolf ¥9is ,
piodat s330U

SW00 (2304 T + [BAUAPISAL 158 HUNSYGLS -

saspa| pup sysodap |

0Z0Z/8T/TT
a[qepioye 15/ 1iew 69T vT/98 “Ine WP'ZZTS N6ET$ WZLrS s £96T Adewwng
NP URIPIL HSZOS
zz0zT 0Z0Z/0E/6 | 810Z/0z/6 | 810Z/02/6 Wiy uA ST A QE %g| OT/06 [ILEVS NS'TTS A80Z% INZ'9SS 0Lz WJu ouoq
zzZ0T ozoz/szfe | 810z/oT/e | 8TOT/0T/6 o k| 0Z/08  |AL'99S A'8S AETZS 8928 9zT ute|y/ded
0z
zz0T 6T0Z/8T/2T | 6TOZ/LT/OT | 14 pg ‘gz 7 ueo| uad/uononasucn| 0Z/08  [MEES NZTS NTEZS NE'6ZS 621 | 1ead
WS's$ fuec| a3pug NS'SS
zz0T 610Z/81/2T | 610Z/0T/T *JA 0T %€ ueo| 00T EEREH NS'TS A68TS WS 9z Wy 392
0Z0Z 211 610Z/v/1 | 810Z/TT/Z1 | 810Z/8T/0T JAQZ %E Ueojwiad| 00T |FERS NTZ8$ ASTTS WS'TS (41 a2ua.ime] 0SZ-9bT
13 ueo| 38plg JLOISIH
%56 og/eT/gToz | STOZ/ZL/¢ | STOZ/9T/Z | Ll0Z/1Z/6 Aoz %evee|[ 00T [Mogs 3096$ NL'EBS NS'TS 91 IInquiniL 0ot
0zZ0Z |84 810Z/6Z/8 | 8T0Z/91/Z | 8T0T/Z/T WUAOE %E vl ozfos  [M8'L9s NE'TS HosTs  [NS'SS 8z Y3IH 8z
%00T Buuay 8T0Z/e/L | L10Z/62/TT | LT0Z/ET/S “IA OZ %€ Ueo| wisd/Uononnsuos| 00T [Moss N88Z$ NEBTS NG'ETS 8 YHON 49D
120C ET0Z/TE/8 | 6T0Z/9Z/9 | 6T0Z/12/E A OF %€-7 Ueo| Wwiad/uoonisuos| 00T |IS'88S >l008s NLLTS INS'T$ 3 SAlIAM £-SOT
£102/6Z/1T | £10Z/81/S
%9 Sunuay ST0Z/TE/0T | &10z/9Z/e 8T0Z/8/8 "IA § 94€ Ueo| wiad/uonanasuos| 0Z/08  [MEOTS (WE'9$ JETES AT TZS 99 UAIIY £0T
£10Z/1/T 9T0Z/8/TT
%06 Sunuay £10Z/8/1T | LtoZ/Ei/S | STOE/8/il “JA OE %€ ueo| wizdfuoganisuos| 00T [ALF6SS NS035 18028 NSS'TZ$ 10T 1ead 11T
%08 £10Z/8/TT | L10Z/TT/S | 9TOZ/8/T1 *JA OE %¢ ueo| Wied/uojansuod| 00T NS85 NPZ'ES APBTS WP'8ES L5T Head 10T
%18 Bunuey LI0Z/L/TT | 9T0Z/ST/1T | 9T0Z/0z/0T ueo| %1 JAQE| 00T  [ILEOTS RERTS J0BES INEZS €S Yoiy 18
%EE 9T0Z/TE/E | STOZ/TT/ZT | STOZ/ST/OT ajoujsuos ‘auos [ajoy| 00T |NL°£9% SIS % WSETS %6 uossipey
%96 Bunuay L10Z/6Z/6 | 910Z/vZ/E | 9T0E/81/C A QZ '%E> ueo|| OE/0L %99S NS NBEES WE'0ZS 09 wnjAsy 0L
ST0Z/81/9
1202 61020Z/6 | S10T/8Z/L | L10Z/0E/TT uAgzggueol| 00T [MS'9ZS HSITS SETS WSE'TS 0T we N EB-6LTT
9102/6/6 910z/9t/e
ST0Z/TE/S
%00T Sujuay stoz/sz/z | ¥Toz/sz/c | 9toz/st/e UAQE %eueol|  0OT  [MS7T9% JOSE'6PES  [M90Z$ WPZ'TS El [EET S
¥TOZ/61/9
%00T Bujguay STOZ/8/¥ | vT0T/ST/L | viOZ/6L/9 “JA OE %€-T Ueo| wuad/uonsnasuocal  OOT  [0SS Jlooes J90ES eSS g sImMa 9
%LE Sujuay sT0Z/ez/e | stoe/iT/e | vioz/er/e A0z "% 'sueol z| 0Z/08  [MST9S WLS 0BTS INESES 434 leuded 06g
%LE 3uijuay SToZ/0E/9 | vrog/et/TT | ¥TOZ/ST/T ajou adeduow| 0Z/08  [NPE9S NO'SS JESES INT'9Z$ 42 [PMadE)
$10Z/82/C 01 paliaAued/dujaueul) UORANIISUC
%56 Bujjuay €T02/5/21 | £T0E/12/9 ET02/¥/9 ¢DLlH s2pug| ST/S8  [M9'0TS WS0'ZTS NETTS We'€Zs 06T eoadg/esaucs
%LE 3ujuay £T0T/ST/TT | €T0Z/12/9 | €10Z/12/ UBOT PUZ WSEZ'ES ‘AUNDa WSZ'ES| 0T/08 |NEOTS [EEH NEETS NBE'PTS  |€9 UAIlY 6LT
%SE Bujjuay €T0T/6Z/0T | €T0Z/1Z/9 | £T0z/Sz/v | 000°0SLS3e @8eByow puz o3 MaAuod| 00T  |NE'STS NOSLS/WE'ES [Nzozs NSF P 9z pURID/ULY TOZ
£T02/12/€ ¢ IE'ES 930U 1a5U0D |ef3IUl
%98 PT0Z/82/E | ETOZ/ET/E | £10Z/08/1 =3e8p0w puz NZ'0T$| 0Z/08 |MZ9s WZLTS A96ES WNS¥8S S8t ule LLL
pasea Aauednasg paso|) uoissiwwo) | [eaolddy 2InPnJis ds nun/s vadd Y Yayd | aun/oaL JaL sun 1afoid
wdiey pucg ‘PE YAyl HY/BIN #

panoaddy SuisnoH yayd




P3Jj0J 152431U1 YUM YS8ES 10 32UD|IDG MIN
31ps wodf ajdipuid fo umophod ,

020Z/91/1T
197 Aewwing
ozoe 6T0C/€T/8 | 8TI0Z/T/9 | 8TI0Z/¥T/S e (WNIN) @8e3uaH|  BIN |ISES 0SS MSTHS M0E’S 4 |uloyimeH 7g-08
0zoe 610¢/€T/8 | 8T10Z/T/9 | 8I0T/¥E/S ‘WY (VNIN) SSWOH @8elldH|  HvY ASTS 0SS ASTYS N0ESS T suloyimeH gg-98
alos 0z0z 610T/€1/8 | 8T0T/T/9 | 8T0Z/¥T/S 3|QEPJIOYY - SAWOH aSeaH| UV 0SS M00zs N06ZS WST'TS ¥ Aauinogig
, Ue07 38pug "1SIH 000°00T$ LTT-STT
%00T Bupuay 8T0Z/L/S /N 910Z/8/ZT spung |exde) “JA g @10u uonanasuod|  PIAL [MIOSS N002S N0STS NBE'TS ¥ wnAsy Tvz
%00T Sunuay 8T0Z/ET/9 v/N 810T/ZT/€0 spung |eyde) paysiuaday| BN [M9S$ 0STS V8IS WELP'TS |8 wn|Asy 682
9102/8/CT
%LL Funuay 810T/¥T/s | 9102/08/6 /N Py uegn| PN [N9TES NGS NSTTS NZZS 11T aueaq se|is
%S8 Sunuay £T0Z/LT/TT | LOOT/TT/TT /N edg g3al PN [ITE6S INTTS MNOTES NLSES 1Tt 199435 U044
fouednoog fouednoog paso|D uolssiwwo) | |enosddy 24n312n4318 yds Hun/S vayd | wy yadd | wun/odal JaL sHun paloid
1e81e) puog 'pPd vadd HY/BiN #

s224n0s Suipung pauep - panoaddy SuisnoH vYayd




000‘OEE’SES 0Z0Z/9T/1T
‘pasjdwios
s8ulioq yoecad ‘Bupsay (10s “Suljjuews|p
10} pa3e|s U0 ‘paysijowap omy 810z/0Z/6 ply-ul-jueln pooyloqysisN STAS 000°000°TS A8 BRIBIBAR LR HHRM 3| R0l aimdesay
'$3.N3aN435 [|e Uo pa1a|dwos uonelpaway PlosuiH 03 Uolsuiatia Jo uawidojanan | 2seyd JUoIpAAY
“ISELU UO SUIOYIMEH 88 / 198J1UCD “BRJE [|IH WNASY Ul diysiaumo
J9pUN 3UWIOYIMEH 98 'Pa19|dWoD UoIINIISUO]
810Z/T/9 | 8T0T/¥T/S | 8TOT/TT/S 5JUBJ3 pue SUED POOYIOQUBIEN LTAd 000005'2$ val WOy @seaLoU] O YNIN BIA S9UE3s|sSy awoy ade3ay
AemJapun UojINIISUOD 810%/sT/L wesSo.d Buiuiel; smo||24 A1inass pooyloqysian (2d) udleN 9TAd = 9'ES 1vd / [00y2s
40 Uoi3eIuaWS|duwl 104 000'00SS SBPN|Y| [BJBUBD 9TAd = 6'ES 000°00S'£S weLs |00Y0S 3|pPIW J3WI0Y JO UoKeAOUY 3|PPIN HIND
ploy uo 8102/52/L H”Mﬂwﬂ ¥N uoneAGUSS Ul JuBWISIAU] ANk [2J3USD 9T A4 000°00S°Z$ WE'ES | FPIqIU0LRI0NS 5 DOSE / 3UN § 40 UoneAoUY >=m£qm“Mh.amm
SJIOM
pa12|duiod Uolansuod 810Z/0Z/6 | ST0Z/TZ/9 N 31iS 13 UO[1B40153d 203SIY “SlJom JoUaIXS Jo) Juel |edauas 9T Ad o000'0stS WV £ 2 yiesy 431ua) yijeaH
Ayeroads oju) Sujp|ing Juesea Jo uojjencusy JeQ Jauey)
“lded 30D Buloqydjau Je apew
aq ¢} sapedddn [euoIppY "@2URIUS B}/S MAU puUR
‘paojiieH Jo A0 Yam uoigounfuca U padojanap aq o1 sapesddn yay pue apod 3ujp|ing ‘sal|ioe) JaY0|
uereAUS Jied 3OO Jo adoag rRYYaLe J1aL pue (95H) dnols puUR Woensal ‘suolssaauos o} sapelddn ‘waysAs
*pajaldwod Bulag swey isy) yound spods PLOJHRH Y3IM UCRIUN[UOD U| 3UOP 39 03 UD||IA 18 oM punos 7 Sunys)| ‘Sujieas papesddn ‘siayoes|q 4o
810%/ST/z | 8T0Z/8/T | B8T0Z/ZT/T | S¥WBAUGD UORINASUCD PloY PUE SUOREAOUSI 335:9/0 CAVAHD | poOLIOqUBIAN LTAd 000°000°0TS worg [IusLusIqinal Je JuBwaeidal ‘pal Jo uBAIEICR | yinipess uojlia
Jujpnjou] ‘wnjpels jo uojieacus) pue Jusladeue|y
. 10aload adedsiaalls ‘any Aueg|y dUaw|dwod [auoz ssiwold) ) ssaulsng pu3 YuoN FEEDTS
313/duios Uopanuisuad LTOZ/6T/TT | LI0T/ST/9 | LT0T/ST/9 PuE Sulpun4 2UOZ 3SIWIC.d |EI2pa4 YIIBLU OF pasn spung pooyloqyBiaN 9TAL o00'szss cal 01 uol3sauuod Sulqed 3auwisiul pasds YBIH  |ulell fany Aueqly
“anuanal |ejual
palealold Jo %05 ueys sse| ou (q) Jo aceds yoalold a|geses|
40 %0S Uel ssa| ou Joj () sasea| JUBUS] JO Uopnsaxe uodn
JUS3UIIU0D SPUNS "YY| %E YHM [e31ded 531 O |8 paasdal spooyioqyBau [euasly Aejd
*up BuNOW S3UBURL 3SIL4 "PaANSS| 0D LTI0Z/TT/S | LT0T/IT/E | LTOT/OT/E |sey wauD 1RUN W21 JESA-0Z B J3A0 BNURUOI [[BYS JUBLIAR] (auoz as|woid) 000°00E'PS wrzes pue Aueq|y Jeddn ‘Iseaymon ays Suiniss Aioroed Yims
*SUOIINGUIS|P Palinbal JaYy10 7§ 90IAI8S 1P USY| 354l pocyloqyd|en 9TAd «ANH Uokes.D gor pue pood Ayunuiwed,
10 JusARd J31iE SED 3|g2|IBAR 13U JO %0/ 9A3934 OF YOYD o3u| Alo3ory 2LIO3SIY Jo UOREAOUDY
‘uoliez||iqels uodn Ajyluol pred aq pue Ydy %T [Bllu]
ue Suisn pa1e|naled SI1AJSS 1GIP WNLWILIL - UBO| WIEHS :
“uiBsq 0 {euoz asjwold]
uolepuncy SuisnoH .>.m>co§._: uoH3INIISUCT peoy peod pauinbal 19n135U05 01 000'STES 95N 03 pooylogyaian 9TAd 000'5S5°TS$ WLES 182415 onjednen uo saluoy llow Rasoelg
g : 3 LT0T/T/T | 9T0Z/8/TT |9TOT/OT/IT | wqQyd !siuswanoldw|/uoiisinbae ays 1o Jueld poo‘0Ess pa1dnago-1aumo AjlWie-oml T JO UOJIdNIISUCD
(pooydogysiau s|||H 2n|g) 133435 Aquedo uo
SHUN PRUMO PUE [B1USL MBU T JO UO[IONJISUCD sled sapmog
“Aemuapun Buises) g 915|dwos | aseyd 9T0Z/08/6 | 9107/5T/6 | 910T/5/6 uopijowap Joj Juels weg pooyogyBian 9TAd 000°000'SS$ woys g 32afoud Bujsnoy 3/Un-0TH JO UoR|lowaq
sniels |eaosddy pieog eacsddy 3INPNNS spund yayd UNOWY Yayd 2dl uopduasaq 13004d
UOISSIWLIOD Yayo 2a1IWWo)
puog

speloid pooyloqydisN vayd




Regional
&
Economic Development

Committee




0z0T/9T/TT

pausdg
‘pRAI0aL Aduednaog Jo 3jed) 6T0Z/Z/v | 6T0Z/0T/T |810Z/0T/ZT ueo] 83pLig / Uolonasuad 000°005'ES /N wr-sg pEPLINE]
UOR2MASUOD LY 8102/0Z/6 “deud vays 000°0002T$ VIN wyrs ofesen s3eseg YInos jlauysng
2115 J0 juaudo[sABp UliM @dUBISISsY (915
JO LI} OWSP PUB JUaLWaIeqe JO UOHES|UIWPY }s
Jadojansp [euspised Yum UonenoSau umo] efu £10Z/ST/T e/u JuelD SplayuUMOLE 0330 000'000°2 $| e asL Buipjam |euoneN - uoidumman
BT/€ pajieaue Jualido[aaap jjell [[BW 32[3N0 404 HJOM 335
groz/et/L | stoE/Si/e eju uelD Y Uequn 000’000zt 5| M PUE SJUBLWaADId W] SINIONIISELU] 1|EIAl UOZLIOH - PACHURH 1583
satpadosd |eRuapisal
33.U3 pUe UONE]S 311 UMO] JBLLIDY
‘umo] yim paudis nom B810Z/0Z/6 ple-uljuels 000'000°T s e Buipnpul ‘saan1onns paaysig swuawRacadw| Auadold
* INojjo UORI|OWSp pue JuILLISIEqY PooyI0qySIaN - piojIeH Ise3
SI03ISIA
Ppajqesip 1oy Alle|naied
*ainydeasy Juoapaany |8T0Z/02/6 ulueln 000'0PE'TS eju “yaed Y3 UM PUE O S5A008
Yy paudis uswaaldy paacidw g sujedss Suipnjau) ied Janiy 18319 - pIoIeH 1563
i JOATY 18215 0} S3UWAN0IdW]
eale Ul Juawdeanap
VYo pue sjueynsuod Sujuued 8T0Z/T/9 ple-ul-iuein 000'0055 eju |B13Uap|531 Jo) mO|je 0 BZE|d S1apunoy - pJojuUeH 3se3
Jadof@Asp 'UMO 3m SNURLIOD SUO|SSNDS| udisap adelen g HuiLue|d Jaisely
Apn3s auet JaAliS HODYD
{323foad NgHI U] PEPUSLILICIS SjUS WaAcLdLLL S UETTERGIL ]
"PIA[OS2] 3 0} SINSS! SIUBLIIUIBLL 6002/v/t 19} INdO 01 UaA S spuny jo ddue|eg) £88'TTOTS ejfu 2ded5]199.135 puB S3|EMSS0.D AueT JBNIS - pIojeH 1583
g Ajiqer] “33|dwes udissp yjemspis ple-ut-ues ‘Sy[EMBPIS M3U JO Uofe|leIsul
B2JE UIMPOOD Uf adaj00
uen2|dwod Buueau yiom || aseld pue | aseyqd gloe/sz/L | 8Toz/Te/e ple-uj-uels 000°000°$ e/u Ju2WdO[2ABP MU 21POWLLOIE CF UIMPOOS Je3U SIUTWAA0IW|
saul| adeujelp Mmau jo uope||eIsul 28eujelq - pJojeH 35e3
Aesiapun tadojaaap i S8
SUOISSNISIP UMa L "a3a|dwos uonljowsag 810Z/1/9 ple-ul-juels 000000°2TS e/u xajdpinw Jalliog jo Juawido[@aapal sewaup
9T02/ZT/L pue uepijowap ‘uopsinbay 5BANOYS - PIOJHERH 3583
adelen
uoj32jdod Bupesu yiom 1 UHON 35 3uc.{ e spuaascidw) s8esed
Juawaacid ujedp wioys sdeieg BT0Z/5Z/L suniipuadxa YOy 123410 000D00'ES e/u paje[ed g Buyooidiaiem pue sjuawascduy 013510 192435 JuOly
282UleJp WI02S ‘UORIISIIU] SNGUIN[OD/FU0L]
12 SWsWaAodW] ) emssold g Sulned
8T0Z/8T/2T 2 idw) g dojenap:
panss| 9T0Z/ST/L 000'050'TS efu Joj uBisap g Buluueld ey |euciZay piopseH
panss! 4y Suluue(d wiay Juo| ‘Aemiapun sases| [ewlod
snjels eacaddy pieog |enciddy aunuPnas juncuiy un uondussag walold
uoIssIuwo) vayd svNIwe) pafeueinl YaWd |Jaddal | ddaL
puog
speloag Juswdo[anag dwouod3 pue [euciday Yayd




000°000°8T § 0z0Z/9T/TT
Juswdojsnsp-ald 0z0Z/TZ/L Aunba/fuect 000°005'5$ wIzZ$ A 393f04d 25N Pax|Ww UORINIISUOD MaU puejpoom/fAuedq|y
SJUBWIYSIGINSBU JOLIAIXS Y)m siaume Apadold 20|19
Mmalaal ul spafold Jaylo UIeN €8-6L7T 8T0Z/0Z/6 | 810Z/02/6 Ajnba pue ueoq 000°000FS = N paoyJoquBiau 3sisse o} puny 4o JUIWYs||qeIs3 peaymolly - oNod
Aemuapun ssadoud uoia)as ayg 8T0Z/0zZ/6 | 810Z/02/6 210U MOJ} YSeD pue ueo’ 000'005'8s | wL'ZEs N 31035 Ale20dg qnH AyyjesH - oNog
snjels |eacaddy pieog ainnis unowy yayd | dalL iauoz uondiasag J3loid
Yaud ISI0SH
spolold wwawdojanapay vayd




Executive Director




FRONT STREET DISTRICT
PILOT DEFERRAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN CRDA AND HB NITKIN

Background:

. Pursuant to Chapter 588x of the Connecticut General Statutes, CRDA executed
multiple PILOT Agreements with HB Nitkin (“HBN”) for the respective properties
located within the Front Street District.

. The proceeds from such agreements are used by CRDA to operate the Front Street
District, including but limited to, insurance, snow removal (sidewalks and streets),
utilities costs, repairs and maintenance of the sidewalks, streetlamp replacement, etc.

. Due to the COVID pandemic, numerous tenants located within the Front Street District
have been unable to make rent payments or, in some cases, have permanently ceased
operating; accordingly, HBN has asked for PILOT relief from CRDA.

. Due to the decreased utilization of the Front Street District, CRDA is able to offer a
PILOT deferral for Thirty-Three Thousand Dollars ($33,000) consistent with the terms
provided below, for the current fiscal year.

Proposed Terms:
. HBN will receive a $33,000 PILOT deferral for the current fiscal year;

. For the period beginning FY 2023 and ending FY 2025, HBN will make three (3)
supplemental payments of Eleven Thousand Dollars ($11,000) per fiscal year in

addition to its scheduled PILOT payments.

MOTION
THE CRDA BOARD HEREBY AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A
PILOT DEFERRAL AGREEMENT WITH HB NITKIN FOR THE VARIOUS PROPERTIES
LOCATED WITHIN THE FRONT STREET DISTRICT, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS
AND CONDITIONS PROVIDED ABOVE.




State Contract Standards Board
Conclusions and Recommendations

Draft Report — Dillon Stadium




SCSB Dillon Stadium Report Draft Page 7 of 9

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

1. When the City asked CRDA to conduct a RFP on its behalf, the City and CRDA should have
entered into a memorandum of understanding outlining the roles, responsibilities and
procedures for conducting such a RFP. In the future, CRDA should enter into memorandums of
agreement when acting on the behalf of a state agency or a public subdivision of the state.

2. The circumstances for the waiver of competitive procurement applicable to the JCJ
Architecture contract are found in C.G.S. 4e-1(16), emergency procurement and C.G.S. 43-
16(6), waiver of bid or proposal for extraordinary circumstances. The SCSB does not find these
circumstances to apply to the JCJ contract. CRDA should have known of the need for
transparency in this process given the prior history regarding the Dillon Stadium renovation
and the expenditure of public dollars. CRDA should incorporate language regarding the
waiving of competitive procurement into its policies and procedures on procurement,

3. Inissuing a RFP, it is assumed that all interested'pa_rtie_s submitting responses-have access to
the same information. It appears that HSG through it prior discussion with the City was aware
of the need for $10 million for renovating Dillon Stadium. It also appears that CRDA was also
aware of those discussions. In issuing the RFP, it should have included the amount of funds
necessary to renovate Dillon stadium and the potential source of public funds so that
respondents or potentially other respondents were aware.of such funds. CRDA should in
future procurement make sure that all bidders or proposers are operating on a level playing
field. =

4. If the City and CRDA knew at the time public money was going to be available or possibly
available, it should have been explicitly stated in the REP.

5. CRDA listed objectives for the REP. These objectives and selection criteria should be
used by the evaluation team to assess each proposal. In the future, CRDA, when

~ issuing a RFP with multiple objectives/criteria, should disclose the weight of each
objective/criteria. Disclosing the weighted criteria will allow each bidder/proposer to
make their best offers and, eventually, the bidder/proposer will see how their offer
Iined'"up with other respondents to the RFP.

6. Following the RFP and recommendation of HSG by CRDA to the City, the City effectively
abandoned the RFP by substantially changing the construct of the original RFP. CRDA and/or
the City should have declared at that point the RFP and its evaluation were no longer valid.
CRDA should develop as part of its procurement policies and procedures; 1) notification to
bidders or proposers when it plans the to abandon a RFP 2) notification to bidders or prospers
of any substantial change to a RFP, and 3)the effect of any substantial change to a RFP and the
proposals submitted by the bidders or proposers.

7. Following the abandonment of the RFP, HSG, CRDA and the City entered into term sheets that
were approved by the CRDA Board, and the City’s Common Council. The initial term sheets

165 Capilo]l Avenue, Suite 1157 — Hartford, Connecticut 06106

Phone (860) 947-0706
www.ct.gov/sesh

An Equal Opportunity Emplover -~ Q 7)
(L




SCSB Dillon Stadium Report Draft Page 8 of 9

10.

11.

12,

were between the City and CRDA, and CRDA and HSG. It appears that the parties operated as
though the term sheets were legally binding contracts. CRDA should have only engaged with
HSG under a legally binding contract. CRDA should develop as part of its procurement policies
and procedures that any expenditure of public funds or commitment of resources with a non-
public entity should not occur until there is a legally binding agreement. SCSB further
recommends any agreement between a quasi-public and a non-public entity should be
reviewed for form by the Attorney General’s office.
As recommended above, CRDA should conduct a review of its policies and procedures for the
procurement of goods and services. The SCSB will share with CRDA model language for
undertaking its review.
In February 2018, the State Bond Commission approved $10 million in public funds for the
renovation of Dillon stadium contingent upon a signed agreement for a professional sports
team. The funds were released to CRDA prior to a signed agreement and CRDA expended
those funds prior to a signed agreement. OPM should putiinto a place a procedure to ensure
that the terms of a bond authorization are' met prior to the release of funds. CRDA’s
representation that then Secretary Barnes knew of the situation is insufficient to secure the
funds and to expend such funds. As state in #7 above, term sheets are not legally binding
agreements. In the event that CRDA and/or the City failed to reach an agreement with HSG,
public funds would have been improperly spent. In the case of the original arrangement under
the term sheets, it would not have been possible for CRDA to have entered into a legally
binding agreement with HSG because of the political contributions made by HSG owner, Bruce
Mandell to the gubernatorial campaign of Bob Stefanowski. Such contributions would have
made Mr. Mandell's company a non-qualified proposer and/or contractor under C.G.S 4e-34.
CRDA should inform prospective bidders, proposers and contractors at the onset of its
procurement process of the prohibitions on political contributions under C.G.S. 9-612(f).
CRDA should not have directed HSG to enter into a non-competitive contract with JCJ
Architecture. As stated above, term sheets are not legally binding agreements and therefore
CRDA had no authority to direct HSG to circumvent the competitive bidding process for a
project that CRDA would ultimately be the project manager. SCSB saw no authority or contract
that allowed CRDA to direct HSG to use JCJ Architecture. CRDA should develop as part of its
procurement policies and procedures that any expenditure of public funds or commitment of
resources with a non-public entity should not occur until there is legally binding agreement.
CRDA in the Dillon Stadium renovation had in effect become the project manager, It instructed
HSG to hire JCJ Architecture to design the renovation work and it hired through a RFP process
Newfield Construction to do the renovation work. To assume that role, the City entered into a
license agreement with CRDA. Any actions taken by CRDA as the licensee would have to be in
compliance with State law and its own policies and procedures regarding the procurement of
goods and services.
The SCSB finds that it is not in the public interest to have public funds expended without
legally enforceable contracts; to do so puts these public funds at risk.

165 Capitol Avenue, Suite 1157 — Hartford, Connecticut 06106

Phane (860) 947-0706

www.ct.gov/sesh
An Equal Opportunity Emplover -




